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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
ORLANDO DIVISION

UNITED STATES EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION,

CIVIL ACTION NO.:
6:04-cv-1223-0rl-22KR S

Plaintlf,

CYNTHIA LANE
Intervenor-Plamiilt,

V.

FXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES, INC.,
Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

INTERVENOR-PLAINTIFF CYNTHIA LANE’S
FIRST AMENDED VERIFIED COMPLAINT

Intervenor-PlaintifT, CYNTHIA LANE, by and through her undersigned counsel, hereby sues
Defendant, EXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES. INC. (hereinafter, “ERS”™), and alleges the
[ollowing:

INTRODUCTION

1. This aclion involves claims sexual harassment and retaliation pursuant to Title VIL ol
the Civil Rights Act ol 1964, 42 U.5.C. §2000¢, ot seq., as amended by the Civil Rights Actof 1991,
and pursuant to the Florida Civil Rights Aet of 1992, Florida Statutes § 760.01, ef seq., and 1s

brought by Intervenor-Plaintiff, CYNTHIA LANE {hercinalter, “"LANE").

Exhibit “A”
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JURISDICTION, VENUE AND PARTIES

2. This action arises, in part, under Title VII ol the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.5.C.
2000, ef seq.. as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1991, This Court has original jurisdiction to
erant reliel pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332(a)(1) and 1343 (3) and (4). This Court is vested
with jurisdiction to order an injunction, front pay, back pay or any other cquitable relict as may be
proper, and compensatory and punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.5.C.
8819812 and 2000¢-3(g). This action also arises, in part, under the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992,
Florida Statutes § 760,01, ef seq.(the “FCRA™). This Court has jurisdiction over all state law claims
pursuant 1o 28 U.S.C. §1331 and §1367. The state claims herein are for damages in excess of
$75.000.00 and are therefore within the jurisdiction of this Court.
3. Venue is proper in the Orlando Division of the Middle District of Florida pursuant to
28 1.8, § 1391(a) and (¢) because Defendant’s principal place of business is located in Orlando.
FFlorida, and because the unlawful employment practices giving rise Lo this action were committed
within this judicial district,

4. Plaintiff, EEOC, made a finding of sexual harassment and retaliation against ERS,
and filed suit in its own right on behalf of LANE, giving her the right to intervene as a Plaintiff.
LANE brings her claims herein as an intervening plaintiff. A copy of the EEOC’s Letter of

Determination is attached to this Complaint as Intervenor’s EXHIBIT “A.”

5. Intervenor-Plaintiff, LANE. is an individual who resides in Orange County, Florida,
during the time of her employment with ERS. LANE was employed by ERS in the position of Field
Supervisor. She is female and is therelore protected from discrimination in employment under the

FCEA and Title VII.

k]
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f. Defendant, ERS, is a Florida corporation. At all times material, ERS was and 1s
engaged in providing medical record management services. ERS is an “cmployer” as defined by 42
11.5.C. 8 2000¢(by and §760.02(7), Florida Statuies because it employs fifleen or more employvees
for cach working day in each of twenty or more calendar weeks in the current or preceding calendar
NeAr.

COMPLIANCE WITH PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

8. LANE timely filed a charge of discrimination with the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission and the Florida Commission on Human Relations, alleging harassment on
the basiz of sex and retaliation, LANE has satisfied any and all administrative requircments
precedent to the filing of this action pursuant to §760.11, Florida Stafufes.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS

9. LLANE was employed with Executive Record Services as Field Supervisor [rom
February 2002 until her discriminatory and retaliatory termination on August 20, 2002,

10, At all malerial times in her employment with ERS, LANE was a fully qualified,
competent, and dedicated employee and was routinely praised for her work performance.  In
addition. LANE never received a reprimand or any other disciplinary action.

11, Mr. Anthony Pasheal, Director of Marketing and Sales, began his employment inJuly
ol 2002, From that date forward, Mr. Pasheal subjected LANE to a pattern and practice ol highly
graphic, unwelcome sexual advances and physical misconduct and touching of a sexual nature, as
well as offensive verbal threats that created a hostile work environment.

17, The hostile and sexually-harassing conduct to which Mr. Paschal subjected LANE

during her employment with ERS included, but was not limited to, the following:

-
A
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a) He threatened, “Sleep with me and Lisa (Lovelace, ERS’s President and CEO), or
vou will be canned.”
b He threatened that Ms. Lovelace would terminate LANE if she reported his

comments and physical misconduet to Ms. Lovelace.

o) He demanded, “As a white girl, don’t you want to suck my big, black
dick?”
dj He rubbed his erotch up against LANEs backside.
&) He would routinely touch LANEs waist, arms, shoulders and thighs, even alter

LANE repeatedly told him that this touching was offensive and unwelcome, and that

she [elt humiliated and depraded by iL
3 LANE reported the sexual harassment to ERS Pre gident and CEQ. Lisa K. Lovelace,
who not only failed to take corrective action, but defended Mr. Paschal. stating that he was going 1o
remain with the company whether the employees, “fucking liked it or not.” Ms. Lovelace thereby
cnabled andfor condoned Mr. Paschal’s highly offensive daily sexual comments, advances, and
threats toward LANE, and ERS thereby created a hostile and demeaning work envirenment wherein
LANE was routinely subjected to sexual harassment by Mr. Paschal,

14.  In addition, Ms. Lovelace, ERS’s President and CEO, also frequently sexually
harassed LANE by conveying graphic details of her own sadomasochistic relationship with Mr.
Pasheal. Ms. [ovelaces sexually harassing comments to LANE included, but were not limited to.
expressing to LANI: that Mr. Paschal was her “master,” and Ms. Lovelace was his "sla ve,” and that

i M. Lovelace did not “obey him.” he would subject her 1o “lashing with a whip.” Such remarks
3 | 2

continued and intensified after LANE politely asked Ms. Lovelace to refrain rom such inappropriate
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and offensive conduct. Additionallv, LANE verbally reported this sexual harassment to ERS’s
Human Resources Manager, Ms, Rhonda Stevens. However, there was no investigation, and no
corrective action was faken.

15, On August 19, 2002, when Mr. Paschal expressed his desire to share a vehicle with
LANE during a work crrand, LANE complained to Mr. Paschal and Ms. Lovelace that she would be
extremely uncomfortable being alone with Mr. Paschal in light of his numerous, highly o ffensive
touchings and sexual advances. Disturbingly, Ms. Lovelace insisted that LANE share the vehicle
with Mr. Paschal. LANE once again stated her objections to his offensive physical and verbal
misconduct. and she then respectfully refused to ride with him.

16, OnAugust 20, 2002, only one day after LANE refused to be alone with Mr. Paschal,
Ms. Lovelace terminated LANE's employment. This unlawful dismissal was in retaliation for
LANE's legally protected reports of hostile work environment sexual harassment, Significantly,
LANE had received no previous wamnings from the company regarding her performance or any
violations of company policies.

7. All conditions precedent to [iling this action have been performed, have occurred or
have been waived.

18. LANE has engaged the services of legal counsel and is obligated to pay legal counsel
their fees incurred in the prosccution of her claims.

VIOLATION OF TITLE V11 OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, AS AMENDED —
SEXUAL HARASSMENT

149, LANE repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs one through cighteen.

LA
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20, LANE had all the necessary qualifications and did, in fact, adequately and effectively
perform all of the duties of her position.

21.  The harassment to which LANE was subjected was based upon her gender, female.

22. ERS, by and through ils owners, agents, directors and/or supervisors, violated 42
8.0, § 2000e-2(a) 1) by perpetrating, tolerating and/or condening sexual harassment in the
workplace and creating a hostile work environment sufficiently severe and pervasive that it interfered
with and subjected LANE to inferior terms and conditions of employment and negatively affected
LANEs physical and psychological well-being.

22, LANIE suffered an adverse job action when RS terminated her in direct retaliaton
for her legally protected reports of sexual harassment.

23, The conduct of ERS, by and through its agents, employees, managers, partners,
supervisors and/or corporate executives, and ERS’s failure to investigale and/or 1o fake prompt
remedial action to prevent continued discrimination and harassment of LANE, deprived LANE of
her statutory rights under 42 US.C. § 2000, ef seq.

24, Neither a legitimate non-discriminatory reason nor a bona fide occupational
qualification exists to justify ERS s intentional disparate treatment of LANLE. ERS failed to mstitute
an adequate anti-harassment policy and complaint procedure, and further, failed to take reasonable
care to prevent and correct the reported sexual harassment.

24, The actions of ERS andfor its agents, were willful, wanton, intentional and with
malice or with reckless indifference to LANE's federally protected rights, entitling LANE to
damages in the form of compensatory and punitive damages pursuant to 2000(¢)-53{g) to punish ERS

for these actions and to deter ERS, and others, from such actions in the [uture,

O
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25, The actions of ERS make reinstatement ineffective as a make whole remedy, entitling
LANE to front pay in licu of reinstatement.

26.  As a direct, proximate and foreseeable result of the actions of ERS, LANE has
suffered past and future pecuniary losses, emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience and mental
anguish, loss of enjovment of life, loss ol dignily, cmotional distress, and humiliation as well as other
non-pecuniary losses and intangible mjurics.

DEMAND FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,  Intervenor-Plaintiff. CYNTHIA LANE. demands judgment against
Defendant. FXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES, INC., for back pay, front pay in lieu of
reinstatement, compensatory damages, punitive damages, prejudgment interest, altorneys” fees, cosls
ol this action and such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.

VIOLATION OF TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, AS AMENDED -

RETALIATION
27. LLANE repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs one through eighteen.
28. RS violated Title VIT of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, by retalialing

against LANTE for complaining about the sexual harassment to which she was subjected, which is
considered an unlawful employment practice under Title VI Ultimately, this retaliation culminated
in LANE s unlawful termination on August 20, 2002.

29, The actions of ERS andfor its agents were willful, wanton, intentional and with
malice or with reckless indifference to LANE's [ederally protected rights, entithing LANE to
damages in the form of compensatory and punitive damages pursuant to 2000( ¢)-5(g) to punish ERS

for these actions and to deter ERS, and others, [rom such actions in the future.

|
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30.  Theactions of ERS make reinstatement ineffective as a make whole remedy, entitling
LANE to [ront pay in licu of reinstatement.

3l. As a direet, proximate and foreseeable result of ERS’s actions, LANE has suifered
past and will sufTer future pecuniary losses, emotional pain and suffering, inconvenience and mental
anguish, loss of enjoyment of life. loss of dignity, emotional distress, and humiliation as well as other
non-pecuniary losses and intangible injurics.

DEMAND FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,  Intervenor-Plaintiff, CYNTHIA LANE. demands judgment against
Defendant, EXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES, INC., for back pay, [ront pay in lien of
reinstatement, compensatory damages, punitive damages, prejudgment interest, attorneys’ fees, costs
of this action and such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.

VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1992
SEXUAL HARASSMENT

32, LANE repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs one through eighteen,

33, The discrimination and harassment to which LANE was subjected was based upon
her sex/vender, female,

34, ERS. violated Florida Statufes §760, e seq., by intentionally discriminating
against LANL and subjecting her to different terms and conditions of employment on the basis of her
sex as more specifically alleged in the General Allegations section of this Complaint.

3. The affensive, threatening, intimidating and humiliating verbal and unwelcome

physical conduet and sexual advances of ERS's agents, employees, managers, supervisors and/or
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corporate executives was sufficiently severe and pervasive and created a hostile and ofTensive work
environment and negatively affected LANE"s physical and psychological well being.

36. The conduct of ERS, by and through its agents, employees, managers, partners,
supervisors and/or corporate executives, and ERS’s failure Lo lake prompl remedial action to prevent
cottinued sexual harassment of LANE deprived LANE of her statutory rights under the FURA.

7. There was no legitimate non-discriminatory reason o justify BRS's intentional
disparate treatment of LANE, and male emplovees at ERS were not subjected to the same sexual
harassment and sexually offensive and humiliating verbal and physical conduct.

3B, The actions of ERS andfor its agenls, employees managers, supervisors andfor
corporate execulives were willful, wanton, intentional and were performed with malice or with
reckless indifference to LANI's legally protected rights, entitling LANE o damages in the form of
compensatory and punitive damages pursuant to Florida Statutes §760.11(5) to punish ERS forits
actions and 1o deter it, and others, from taking such actions in the future.

39, Theactions of ERS make reinstatement ineffeetive as a make whole remedy, entitling
LANE to front pay in licu of reinstatement.

40.  Asadirect, proximate and [oresecable result of ERS™s actions, LANE has suffered
past and will suffer future pecuniary losses, emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience and mental
anguish, loss of enjoyment of life, loss of dignity, emotional distress, and humiliation as well as other
non-pecuniary losses and intangible injuries.

DEMAND FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,  Intervenor-Plaintiff, CYNTHIA LANE, demands judgment against

Defendant, EXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES, INC., lor back pay, front pay in lieu ol
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reinstatement, compensatory damages, punitive damages, prejudgment interest, atlormneys’ {ees, costs
of this action and such other reliel as this Court deems just and proper,
COUNT IV

VIOLATION OF THE FLORIDA CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1992
RETALIATION

41. LANE repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs one through eighteen.

42, ERS violated Florida Stafutes §760.10(7) by retaliating against LANE for
complaining about the sexual harassment to which she was subjected, said discrimination being
considered an unlawful employment practice under Florida Standes §760.10(1). Ultimately, this
retaliation culminated in LANE’s unlawful termination on August 20, 2002,

43, The actions of ERS andfor ifs agenls were willlul, wanton, intentional and with
malice or with reckless indilference to LANE s protected rights, entitling LANE to damages in the
form of compensatory and punitive damages pursuant to Florida Stadutes §760.11 to punish ERS for
these actions and to deter ERS. and others, from such actions n the Tuture,

44, [he actions o ERS make reinstatement ineffective as a make whole remedy, entitling
L.ANFE 1o [ront pay in licu of reinstatement.

45, As a direct, proximate and foreseeable result of ERS s actions, LANLE has sultered
past and fulure pecuniary losses, emotional pain and suffering, inconvenience and mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, loss of dignity, emotional distress. and humiliation as well as other non-
pecuniary losses and intangible injuries.

DEMAND FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,  Intervenor-Plaintiff, CYHTHIA LANE, demands judgment against

Defendant, EXECUTIVE RECORD SERVICES, INC. for back pay, front pay in liew of

|
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reinstatement, compensatory damages, punitive damages, prejudgment inlerest, altorneys” fees, costs

of this action and such other relief as this Courl deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Intervenor-Plaintiff, CYNTHIA LANE, demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable in each

count of the Complaint.

DATED this 13™_ day of October, 2004,

Respectfully submitted,

/s Joan 8. Okun
Jill 8. Schwarlz, Esquire
Florida Bar No.: 523021

Joan 8. Olkun, Lsg.

Florida Bar No.: 0544507

JLL 8. SCHWARTY & ASSOCIATES, PLA.
180 Park Avenue North, Suite 200

Winter Park, Florida 32789

lelephone: (407) 647-8911

Facsimile: (407) 628-49%

Altorneys for Intervenor-PlaintilT
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VERIFICATION
Persanally appered belore the wndersigned  CYNTHEA LA NE who, being tirst duly
sworn. deposes and says (hat the allepations ol this Yeriled Amendied Conplaint and Demnel

for Jury Triak are true and correet o the best of her knewiedee, information and helizl,
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U.5. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CDMMI“:SID‘NT

Miami District Office One Biscayne Tower
’ 2 South Biscayne Bhvd., Suits 2700

\{lm: FL 33131

y - PH: {305 536449 ]

JUH 2 - E{]{}d' TDD: (I05) 536-572]
BAX: (105) 536-4011

EEOC Charge Nec.: 150 2003 02201

Cynthia Lane Charging Party
505 Garden Heights Drive

m

Winter Garden, Flaorida 324781

Executlve Record Service Respondent
GO0 % Silverton Strest
Orlando, Fleorida 32808

LETTER OF DETERMINATION
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Respondent is an emplover within the mhan1ng of Title VII of the
Ciwvil Rights Act of 1964, as amended and ti imeliness, deferral and
all octher requirements ‘rnr coverace have been met.

Charglng Farty ﬂl1pqeu that she WdS subjected to sexual harassment
and terminatad in etaliation for complaining of the sexunal

harassment .

I have determined that the evidence obtained during the
lnvestigation establishes that there is reasonable cause to belisve
that the a'“]-latrglrmr Partcy was sexually harassed and retaliated
against in violation of Title VIT of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
as amended.

Upon finding that there is reason to believe that violation has
ccocurred, the Commission attempts to eliminate the glleged unlawful
practices by informal methods of tonciliation.

Please Lcmplnte the enclosed Invitation to Conciliate and return it
o the Commission at the above address no later than July 7, 2004.
You may Zfax your response directly to(305) 530-76680 ta the
attention of Fosemary Caddles, Investigator. Failure to respond by
July 7, 2004 will indicate that you are notbt interested in
Cﬁ“”lllﬂtlﬂﬁ this matter and the Commission will determine thar
2fforts to conciliate this charge as reguired by Title VIT of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amen wded, have been unsuccessful.

Tt

Intervenor’s Exhibit A"
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Letter of Determination
EEOC Charge 150 2003 02201

Page 2

hould the Respondent decline to discuss settlement or when, for

ny other reason, a setitlement acceptakle to the office Director is
1wt obhtained, the Director will inform the parties and advise them
of the court enforcement alternatives available to aggrieved
persons. A Commission representative will contact each party in
the near future to begin conciliation.

H] '.'_n“

=

You are raeminded that Federal law prohibits retaliation against
persons who have exercised their right teo inguire or complain about
matters they believe may violate the law., Discrimination against
persons who have cooperated in Commissicn investigations is alqa
prohibited. These protections apply regardless of the Commission’
determination on the merits of the charge

On Behalf of th?/CEhQiSSiun:

o rico Costales
strict Directeor

Date

s

Enclosure: Invitation to Conciliate

(adml Fespondent Representative
Rhonda Stephens
Human Resources/Opsraticns Manager
600 ¥ Silverton S3treet
Orlando, Florida 32808

Charging Party Representative

Jill 3. Schwartz, Esqg.

Jill Schwartz and Assoclates, P.A.
180 Morth Park Avenus, Suite 200
Winter Park, Florida 32789




